PR 295256 Question and Answers

All Q&A will be included in the same file, whether Round 1 or 5


Round 1 Q&A, 3/16/2015

Responses to questions received as of March 11, 2015 related to RFP 295256.  

Round 2 Q&A 3/18/2015

This is to replace the answer to question 4.  It was determined that after review and comments received that our answer was overly restrictive and incorrect.  Changes have been highlighted in yellow.  

Question 1:

How does this RFP relate to other similar RFP Posted recently by Battelle for buoy deployments in Oregon?

Answer 1:  

Previous solicitations to include RFP 280124 were cancelled.  While the scope may be similar, RFP 280124 was cancelled.  Proposals should be based on the information posted in this solicitation not on information posted related to other RFPs posted by Battelle. 

Question 2:

Related to SOW task 1.  Two weeks to do the analysis and provide design drawings is very tight.  

Answer 2: 

Proposals that indicate 3 weeks are needed to deliver a preliminary design will not be considered non-responsive.  Three weeks to provide a preliminary design is adequate.  

Question 3:

Related to SOW task 1. Is there any chance that you may get approval not to recover the mooring?    

Answer 3:

The requirement is that the mooring and anchor be recoverable.   

Question 4:
Related to SOW task 1. Since you state that bottom scour will be minimized. What exactly does this mean?  Are you requiring that the mooring be buoyant to avoid chain contact?  

Answer:

This does not mean zero scour. It does mean that a design where chain alone forms the anchor would not be considered responsive. We expect the vendor to demonstrate reasonable due diligence to reduce impacts to achieve a design acceptable to permitting agencies.
This does not mean zero scour. All mooring designs that minimize scouring impacts are considered potentially acceptable to regulatory agencies.  We expect the vendor to demonstrate reasonable due diligence to reduce scouring impacts to the extent practicable in order to achieve a design acceptable to permitting agencies.
Question 5:
Related to SOW task 1. We assume there are no requirements at this time to use the 4 ton anchor noted in previous RFPs and that we can use a lighter anchor or 2-2 ton anchors for example?  

Answer 5: 

PNNL does not plan to provide the anchor or specify an anchor weight to secure the buoy.  It is the subcontractor’s responsibility to design a mooring system that adequately secures the buoy while meeting our permitting requirements.   

Question 6:
Related to SOW task 1. We assume the redesign will need to be submitted for permit review.  What is the time line for this?  Do we assume no fabrication can take place until the permit review has been completed?  What work can be done in the interim?
Answer 6:
The mooring/anchor design will be submitted for permitting review. Because of previous agency discussions, we expect the process to move expeditiously.  However, mooring/anchor fabrication could occur once PNNL indicates permit review is complete, to prevent an unnecessary expenditure of funds for materials.

Question 7:

Related to SOW Task 2.  A vessel may be perfectly capable of deploying the system, but the same may not be true for the recovery and another vessel may be required from another area for another cost. Until Task 1 is completed, the vessel requirements for a recovery of the system are a large uncertainty.  Is there consideration to cost the recovery plan and operations task separately?

Answer 7:

We anticipate that respondents will have sufficient knowledge of Nomad buoys, anchors, and moorings to be able to anticipate both appropriate designs for recoverable anchors/moorings and the required deployment and recovery vessels.

Question 8:

Related to SOW Task 3.  Are you providing any mooring equipment such as the 4 ton (wet) sinker/anchor?  Or do we assume we provide cost for complete fabrication and parts?

Answer 8:

PNNL has a limited number of mooring-related parts and a 4 ton concrete anchor on hand, however we are anticipating that vendors will prefer to design and fabricate the mooring system with parts they fabricate and purchase because vendors are responsible for any failures in the equipment.  If vendors would like to utilize a 4 ton anchor in their design, one with a single previous use of < 1-week can be provided.  

Question 9:
Related to SOW task 10.  Due to the uncertain nature of the recovery and the lack of a design currently, is there consideration that the recovery of the mooring and anchor (under normal conditions i.e. not broken free) be costed separately on a T&M basis?  

Answer 9: 
The schedule for a normal recovery will be developed based on vendor-acceptable weather and sea conditions. These conditions should be specified by the vendor in the mutually agreed deployment plan. Please provide your normal operating window for recovery in the technical proposal. We expect the vendor to be able to provide a fixed price cost for this task. 

Question 10:
Related to SOW task 6.  You have a depth range for deployment between 360 - 403 m.  What type of survey was done?  Will we have access to the survey information?  Will we need to survey the area before the deployment to ensure proper depth placement?  

Answer 10:
PNNL’s primary objective is to deploy the buoy within the specified area, not at a specified depth. The depth range PNNL provided for the deployment area of interest was determined using publicly-available NOAA bathymetry data (see NOAA's Geophysical Data Center website [http://maps.ngdc.noaa.gov/viewers/wcs-client/]), which is a relatively coarse resolution.   If the vendor determines that the NOAA bathymetry is insufficient for deployment purposes, the vendor will be responsible for obtaining information needed for deployment.

Question 11:
Related to SOW Pg. 5 SOW. "i.e. gas monitor for confined space entry"...Confined space entry can be done at various levels with various equipment.  Will a marine chemist be required or can a safety officer with O-2 meter perform?

Answer 11:

Safety plans for PNNL staff require monitoring for CO, H2S, O2, and LEL. The vendor is expected to monitor in accordance with safety and health regulations under which they work if working on the buoy independently. When PNNL staff is working with vendor staff inside the buoy, PNNL will bring its required monitoring equipment.

Question 12:
Related to SOW task 8a. If the mooring breaks free, will you require a new recovery plan to retrieve the mooring and anchor from the bottom?  The mooring system may or may not be able to be redeployed and will require inspection and may require refurbishment.

Answer 12:
Recovery of the anchor and mooring if the buoy breaks free will be addressed in the deployment plan developed. It is our expectation that the vendor and PNNL will work together to determine appropriate actions depending on specific circumstances. 
Question 13:

Related SOW task 8b.  This task assumes float can be attached to mooring?

Answer 13:

There are no assumptions. The respondents may propose optimum recommended solutions. An attached float could be one acceptable approach.  Battelle can send a 48-inch steel float with buoy but is not specifying that the float be used or any particular method that the vendors choose to use to perform the tasks.
Question 14:

Related SOW task 8c.  In 8c “at PNNL’s discretion, the buoy will be redeployed.”  If the buoy breaks free, unless the mooring is buoyant design, the mooring will sink to the seabed so a grapnel will have to be used to snag the bottom chain assuming that it is allowed given their desire to minimize bottom scour.   The cost of this operation is difficult to assess because grapnelling is always uncertain and time-consuming.  Do we have to provide a cost estimate for this process?  Would you consider T&M?

Answer 14:

The expectation is that the mooring will be designed in a way that the mooring and anchor will be recoverable in most circumstances. For a catastrophic event, PNNL will evaluate the circumstances to determine whether the buoy can reasonably be redeployed. If circumstances occur that would not reasonably be anticipated, we will work with the vendor on an acceptable path forward.
Question 15:
Related SOW task 9a:  P10. 9a. "which may require specialized equipment…."  Please clarify what "specialized equipment" is so it can be costed.

Answer 15:
The vendor is required to determine the method of performing the derelict gear inspection.  Battelle is not dictating how this is to be performed.  When we indicate “specialized equipment” we are referring to the equipment that can safely and economically perform a derelict gear inspection such as a remotely operated vehicle however we are not dictating the method used just that it needs to be performed. The method must enable that the mooring and any derelict gear be viewable real-time (during monitoring), and that there is a record of the monitoring that can be viewed later by PNNL, NOAA, or others if needed.

Question 16:

Related SOW task 9b.  Assumes standard marine diesel as used in vessel is acceptable?  Topping the buoy off with fuel may not be a safe practice at sea and assume discretion will be allowed to fill at less than 240 gal?

Answer 16:

The buoy uses standard diesel. Based on information transmitted from the buoy, PNNL will advise the vendor as to the anticipated quantity of fuel required. If sea state does not permit the buoy to be filled with that amount in accordance with safe and environmentally sound practices, a lesser amount will be allowed, above the minimum needed for operations.
Question 17:

Related to Task 10a.  Although document is called "Deployment Plan," assumes it will include recovery plan which is the highest risk task in this project?  The recovery will not be the deployment in reverse and will be much more involved and have different vessel requirements.
Answer 17:

The deployment plan provided by the vendor is to be end-to-end through ultimate buoy recovery. The example plan provided by PNNL does not, however, include similar detail regarding physical deployment and recovery practices.

Question 18:

Related to RFP.  On page 3 of the RFP, $10M “Protection and Indemnity (including marine towage).”  Please clarify this new requirement and is it negotiable?  The buoy is worth $1.3M.  

Answer 18: 
These are the minimum requirements set to protect the government and Battelle.  Please note that P&I insurance is not just for the value of the Buoy but also for nearly all liability arising out of boat operations excluding workers’ comp and collision coverage provided in the hull policy.  Battelle is willing to consider alternate proposals but the subcontractors must demonstrate how the risk is adequately addressed and Battelle reserves the right to consider alternate proposals non responsive.  
Question 19:
What is the project completion date? 
Answer 19:

The project completion date will be approximately 12 months following initial deployment. Specific dates depend on final acquisition of permits and other similar drivers. Overall project completion could reasonably be expected within 18 months following implementation of contract.

Question 20:

Related RFP clause Charter Vessel Services (cl. 3000 -- Apr 2012).  Clarify "training required by Battelle."
Answer 20:

Training required by Battelle would be ensuring that the subcontractor is familiar with the information specific to the buoy to prevent damage to the buoy and to identify any safety issues or hazards related to the tasks being performed.
Question 21:

Related to SOW task 1:  Does the design submitted for mooring and anchor require a Professional Engineer’s review and stamped drawings?

Answer 21:
We expect the vendor to exercise due diligence in designing the mooring and anchor system to industry standards. The vendor should be able to document that they have done this. 

Question 22: 

Will the resulting mooring and anchor system of this project become property of, and responsibility of, PNNL or Contractor? (ie: at end of the project, will system be shipped with buoy or disposed of by contractor)

Answer 22:

We anticipate reusing any serviceable components in the next deployment.  If the government pays for the equipment then it will become government property.  If vendors are using their equipment, such as an anchor, and do not charge the government for the acquisition price, that could be an acceptable proposal.  

Question 23:
Will AXYS provide training for the contractor staff responsible for periodic (quarterly) maintenance tasks and potential critical alarm emergency response tasks?

Answer 23:
No.  Battelle will provide any oversight needed.  Tasks that require significant technical knowledge of the buoy or instrumentation will be completed by Battelle staff, a separate subcontractor of Battelle, or by the vendor under direct Battelle oversight, so no significant amount of training is anticipated.  

Question 24:
Related to SOW task 9a.  Does the midyear visit “inspection of mooring and line for derelict gear” require inspection of the entire anchor and mooring system (including the anchor on the ocean floor)?

Answer 24: 
Battelle does not anticipate that the entire depth of the mooring will require inspection, but this is ultimately determined by the permitting agency.  Please prepare your proposal based on the assumption that we will need to inspect the uppermost 229m or 750 feet of mooring.
Question 25:
Can PNNL provide a list of interested vendors who received this RFP?

Answer 25:
No.  PNNL as a general rule does not provide a list of interested parties.  

Question 26:
Related to SOW task 2.  Will PNNL be releasing the Deployment Plan for the deployment off the coast of Virginia?

Answer 26:
Yes.  Battelle will release an example of deployment plan to provide to potential vendors.  
Questions 27:

Please clarify the required steps and or responsibility if the buoy goes adrift from its moorage and who is liable? 

Answer 27:

Our paramount concerns are that we protect DOE’s buoy in a reasonable way and the safety concerns for other vessels that arise from having a buoy adrift in the ocean.  In the unlikely event the buoy does go adrift after it is secured, any immediate safety concerns will be addressed by Battelle in consultation with the vendor and other organization if appropriate.  We would organize our response based on the deployment plan (task 2) and utilize the vendor if needed under Task 8a in the SOW.  Subsequently PNNL will perform a root cause analysis to determine what happened.
Question 28:

Related Deployment Schedule:  Many of the mooring components may have 4-6 week lead times after the 2 week mooring design is completed and after the design is reviewed by PNNL.  How long after the estimated April 15th date is acceptable for deployment?

Answer 28:

The April 15 date is subject to change.  We understand that there may be a 4-6 week lead time for some components but our expectation is that as soon as the mooring design is finalized and approved by the permitting agencies the vendor will start procuring the necessary components for the mooring to minimize any schedule risk.  Battelle reserves the right to not award funding for all tasks simultaneously. Therefore, please read any subsequent contracts carefully to assure that you have funding necessary for the tasks that you are performing. Impacts to the schedule from this funding structure will be the responsibility of Battelle. 
Question 29:

Related to SOW Task 1.  The deployment site may be subject to extreme weather conditions that would subject the mooring system to atypical loads.  Can you provide guidance on the limiting design parameters for the mooring (max wind/wave ht/storm criteria (10 year/100year/1000year)).  Can PNNL provide data or analysis for predictions of environmental loading on the buoy at the site, perhaps from the previous mooring design process? Providing that information will give the contractors design parameters allowing for a more accurate quote.  

Answer 29: 
We expect the anchor/mooring system to be robust under 100-year wind and wave states. The vendor will need to identify what these are and develop their own determinations of environmental loading. 
In consideration of the challenges of pricing mooring/anchor components prior to design, PNNL has determined that it will procure the mooring components or reimburse the vendor.  As part of the design PNNL will require a complete parts list from the vendor and will negotiate a fair and reasonable price or procure the parts and have them delivered to the vendor.  For purpose of PNNL budgeting, please provide an anticipated range of component costs based on your industry knowledge of the range of candidate designs. 

Question 30:

Will PNNL consider extending the due date?

Answer 30:

The due date has been extended to March 24, 2015.  
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